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QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES 1

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
Legal Representation services
os/mlsp-21-500-S
QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES #1
Question 1:
Does our firm obtain the MSP/FBI background checks before

        

we submit the proposal or afterward?  
Response:
Per Section 3.7.2 of the RFP, Offerors should obtain the background checks in sufficient time so that employees are able to begin providing services at the start of the Contract and submit the Criminal Background Check Affidavit as required.  The Contractor hereby agrees to provide security clearance results for any additional candidates at least seven (7) days prior to the date the candidate commences work on this Contract.  See Amendment No.1.
Question 2: 
It appeared to us that separate firms could submit independent proposals for CINA cases and guardianship cases. Is that correct? Or must the proposal include guardianship and CINA cases together? 
Response:
Offerors may choose to respond only to Functional Area I: CINA/TPR or Functional Area II: APS/APGRB or both.  Separate Proposals must be submitted if responding to both. 
Question 3:
Page 4 of 137 states “In addition to any Contract awarded for existing cases, each of the twenty-four (24) jurisdictions will have a minimum of 2 contracts awarded for new cases.”  Since many jurisdictions are projected to have relatively few new cases, it is requested that some jurisdictions have only 1 contract awarded for new cases.

Response:
The Department does not wish to change this requirement. 
Question 4:
Pages 9 and 13 of 137 state a requirement for “In-Person contact” with clients.  In view of the risks and restrictions caused by the coronavirus, it is requested that virtual visits (by phone or video) be an alternative to In-Person visits.
Response:
If necessary, the Department will issue guidance regarding visitation requirements, which will be in accordance with the State mandates and restrictions due to COVID-19. 
Question 5:
Page 11 of 137 states “The Contractors shall: . . .7) Not be permitted to seek payment under client assets once a case has been accepted under the contract resulting from this solicitation.”  On occasion, previously unknown assets are discovered after the guardianship hearing.  In those few cases, the Contractor should be allowed to file a fee petition for legal services; and then the Contractor would reimburse the State for the fixed fee that was paid to the Contractor.
Response:
If the lawyer believes that the client may have assets, he or she should not seek payment from the Department until the issue is resolved. 
Question 6:
Page 15 of 137 states “The Contractor shall dedicate no less than 6 hours per Client per Contract year.”  Since the needs of some clients are significantly less or more than 6 hours per year, it is requested that the sentence be revised to “The Contractor shall dedicate, as an average for all clients, no less than 6 hours per Client per Contract year.”  This requested change is consistent with the requirement in Section 2.3.4C on page 18 of 137.
Response:
The Department does not wish to change this requirement.
Question 7:
Page 17 of 137, Section 2.3.3 states “In order to eliminate unnecessary case postponements and/or delays, Contractor shall maintain an office no more than a 50-mile radius of each awarded jurisdiction’s Circuit Court.”  In view of the risks and restrictions caused by the coronavirus, many Circuit Courts are conducting virtual hearings (by phone or video) as an alternative to hearings at the courthouse.  Thus, it is requested that Section 2.3.3 be deleted.
Response:
The Department does not wish to change this requirement.
Question 8:
Page 28 of 137, Section 3.3.1C.11) states a requirement for the signature of the presiding Judge on Certificates of Attendance.  Some Judges prefer that the courtroom clerk sign the Certificate. Thus, it is requested that this Section be revised to also allow the courtroom clerk to sign a Certificate of Attendance.  This requested change is consistent with Attachment CC (the sample certification of attendance).
Response:
Please see Amendment No. 1. 
Question 9:
The hyperlink provided in 5.2.1 on p. 55 for electronic submission instructions does not seem to work.
Response:
http://procurement.maryland.gov/wp-content/uploads/sites/12/2019/08/5–eMMA-ORG-Responding-to-Solicitations-Double-Envelope-v2.pdf
Question 10:
Attachment BB, page 2 of 2 states projected caseloads for Montgomery County and Prince George’s County that are unreasonably high.  It is requested that the estimates be reviewed and then revised to numbers that are less than 50% of the numbers in Attachment BB.  

Response:
The numbers are based on projections, which include the served population of youth in care and over 21. 
Question 11:
2.2.1 C. 1 requires representation in adoption proceedings.  Will the Department pay for representation of a client in an adoption proceeding, e.g. adoption ceremony when attorney attends?  

Response:
Yes, however, a Certificate of Attendance from the adoption proceeding is required in order to receive payment.
Question 12:
2.2.1. C. 2 requires investigation to be conducted by employee possessing at least three years of child welfare experience, but attorneys working under the contract need only two (2) years which is inconsistent.  Will the State amend this section to require the investigator to have only 2 years experience?

Response:
Please see Amendment No. 1.
Question 13:
2.3.6 Please define positions considered as Key Personnel.  Are paralegals and support staff, e.g. case managers, receptionists, secretaries etc. considered Key Personnel?

Response:
It is up to the Offeror to identify who is Key Personnel.  At a minimum, the attorneys and Contractor’s Contract Monitor assigned under the Contract are considered Key Personnel.
Question 14:
2.4.1. A. requires submission of invoices by the 15th of the month.  Under the current contract CINA invoices are to be submitted by the 20th of the month.  This requirement was changed from the 15th to the 20th in the last procurement after consideration of the difficulty in obtaining some of the required documents to accompany the billing.  Will the State consider extending the date to the 20th of the month or even the 30th of the month as with APS/APGRB invoices?

Response:
Please see Amendment No. 1.
Question 15:
3.3.1.C.10 Appointment Orders – the appointment order does not include the name of the attorney, only the firm as it is the firm that is appointed to represent the child, not the individual attorney.  An entry of appearance is submitted to the Court for the assigned attorney as a separate document. Will the State amend this section to require only that the name of the firm appear as appointed to represent the child?  

Response:
Please see Amendment No. 1.
Question 16:
3.3.1.C. 11.  Court Orders or Certificate of Attendance. In some jurisdictions it is a lengthy process to obtain the order signed by the Judge.  Will the State allow us to submit court orders/cert of attendance signed by a Magistrate in lieu of a Judge?

Response:
Yes.   Please see Amendment No. 1
Question 17:
3.3.1.D. Please define this section.  Under what circumstances would we invoice the State for “time and material items”?  

Response:
The resulting Contract will be fixed price, not time and materials. 
Question 18:
3.3.2.  The time for invoice processing and payment is becoming increasingly more lengthy and invoices are being paid more than 30 days from the date of submission even if properly submitted.  Would the State please include a provision in the RFP indicating their intent to pay invoices timely?

Response:
Please refer to Section 4.2 of the sample Contract.
Question 19:
3.6.1.B. What is the difference between Errors and Omissions/Professional liability insurance and Malpractice /Professional Liability insurance under F.?
Response:
The Malpractice/Professional Liability insurance is for attorneys.  The Errors and Omissions/Professional Liability Insurance may cover other employees/non-attorneys.
Question 20:
3.6.1.C. Under the prior RFP, the requirement for Crime Insurance/Employee theft was deleted.  Why is this now being required? Will the state remove this requirement for this RFP?

Response:
The Department does not wish to remove this requirement.
Question 21:
3.7.2, Criminal Background Checks – will the State allow current employees of current contractors to be grandfathered in under this provision since they have undergone background checks and only submit background checks for newly hired employees with the proposal?  This seems to be an unnecessary expense for current contractors.

Response:
As this is a new Contract, new background checks are required.
Question 22:
3.8 Is the problem escalation procedure to be submitted and written in the proposal or 10 days after award?

Response:
A draft Problem Escalation Procedure (PEP) is due with the Proposal. See Section 5.3.2F of the RFP.  The final PEP is due within ten (10) days after notice of award and as otherwise required in Section 3.8.1.
Question 23:
1.1.3 on page 1 mentions references to substantiate attorney experience.  What if attorney experience is more than sufficient based on the resume itself and the offeror's attorney performance as a state vendor for many years?  Is a reference still required?  If so, what kind?
Response:
Yes.
Question 24:
6.2.3 Offeror Qualifications and Capabilities refers to Section 5.3.2 H on page 59.  However, in Section 5.3.2 H. a reference is made to Section 3.10.1 (page 39) which states “THIS SECTION IS IN APPLICABLE TO THIS RFP”.  Please clarify.

Response:
See Amendment No. 1.
Question 25:
Please clarify the reference information needed to be submitted with the proposal?  Name and contact information of an individual reference or “letter of reference”?  

Response:
See Amendment No. 1.
Question 26:
Section 2.3.5.D Requires at least two years of MARYLAND-SPECIFIC legal representation experience in CINA/TPR.  What is the State’s rationale for requiring Maryland specific?  This requirement eliminates a huge pool of child advocates who may have practiced in other states and the Washington, DC area.  Since the hiring and retention of qualified staff is important, will the State consider elimination the Maryland specific requirement?
Response:
No, however, Contractors are not prohibited from hiring attorneys that do not meet the minimum qualifications, but they must be supervised. 

Question 27:
Section 5.3.2 O. Economic Benefit Factors: This section of the RFP was deleted in the last procurement.  Will the State consider deleting it from this RFP?
Response:
The Department does not wish to remove this requirement.

Question 28:
On p. 59, 5.3.2.I, offerors are asked to provide references from 3 clients.  This may be difficult for some offerors because our clients tend to have diminished capacity.  Can you expand the types of references allowed?  If so, how?
Response:
See Amendment No.1. 
Question 29:
Please provide a chart of the number of shelter cases received monthly for Baltimore City and all 24 counties in Maryland.

Response:
MLSP does not have access to this information. 

Question 30.
When submitting the technical and financial proposals, how will we submit the second searchable PDF copies (redacted confidentiality copies) for the technical and financial proposals?  Will eMMA allow us to submit the information after we have submitted our first searchable copies of the technical and financial proposals?

Response:
Yes. 

Question 31:
Page 13, 2.2.2 C. 1) refers to b) Exception Hearings and c) Extension Hearings.  Those are terms not typically used in APS/APGRB cases.  What do they mean?

Response:
Exceptions and Extension hearings are types of hearings generally used in CINA/TPR cases and are not applicable to APS. 
Question 32:
Page 13, 2.2.2 C 1) d) mentions "Settlement Hearings."  Are these the same things as mediations?

Response:
No.
Question 33:
Page 56, 5.3.2 F. 7) says "Backup Solution/strategy recommendation."  What does this mean?

Response:
This section refers to any back-up strategies or procedures the Contractor will deploy in the event of an emergency or loss, which may impact the Contractor’s ability to provide the services under this RFP.  
Question 34:
Section 5.3.2 F. 10) says, "technical risk of migrating from the existing system."  What does this mean?

Response:
Please see Amendment No. 1. 

Question 35:
If we have Certificates of Good Standing from the Maryland Court of Appeals that are June 2020 or later, do we have to get new certificates?

Response:
Yes.
Question 36:
Does each jurisdiction require a separate application, with a staffing plan.

Response:
The Offeror shall identify the jurisdictions it proposes to service and include a summary of the jurisdictional nuances in its Technical Proposal.  A separate Projected Staffing Form, Attachment P, shall be submitted for each jurisdiction.  

Question 37:
Page 58, 5.3.2.G. What does "exactly three (3) key resources ..." mean?
Response:
Please see Amendment No. 1. 
Question 38:
Are the case numbers in attachment BB individual hearings or cases.

Response:
Cases.

Question 39:
What does the below quote mean? ‘The Contractor shall take all necessary steps to prevent postponements. Contractor is responsible for adhering to an awarded jurisdiction's Court practices regarding postponements. Contractor will not be compensated for postponements.’

Response:
The statements speak for themselves.
Question 40:
We must email an electronic copy of all Appellate briefs to the State?  (p 21/137) Please Confirm.

Response:
The Department has been able to modify the electronic invoicing system to accept appellate briefs as a part of the invoicing process, so the appellate brief should be submitted using the MLSP electronic system.
Question 41:
Pursuant to section 2.1, for both Functional Areas, are Appeals required to be invoiced separately?  Is there an appropriate Attachment for billing Appeals separately?
Response:
The electronic invoicing system is being modified to separate the billing for Appeals. Additional directions will be provided to the successful Offerors.  

Question 42:
Is the bidding process for appeals separate from the regular bidding process for both functional areas?
Response:
No.

Question 43.
Pursuant to section 2.1, for both Functional Areas, at what rate are Appeals to be invoiced separately?  Is this separate from the fully loaded firm fixed unit price per child per contract year? 
Response:
The one Fully Loaded Fixed Unit Price (FLFUP) applies to Appeals and all other hearing types. 

Question 44:
Pursuant to sections 2.2.1.B.7 and 2.2.2.B.6, what is the rationale for imposing a penalty of $150/day for an attorney who does not meet the training hour requirement?
Response:
The training and continued legal education is critical for attorneys in order to ensure that the State’s most vulnerable clients are provided the best legal representation services.  

Question 45:
Pursuant to sections 2.2.1.B.7 and 2.2.2.B.6, what is the expectation of the State, if, due to a legitimate extended absence, the attorney cannot complete the required training hours?  Would such a circumstance lead to the imposition of the daily penalty?
Response:
The Department would have to review the matter and make a determination on a case by case basis.  In any event, proper and timely notice must be given to the Contract Monitor.
Question 46:
Pursuant to sections 2.2.1C.1(a-n) and 2.2.2.C.1(a-g), are all of these hearings, billable events?
Response:
Yes, however, there may be other hearings that are billable. 

Question 47:
Pursuant to sections 2.2.1C.1(j) “adoption hearings”, if no court order is generated indicating that an attorney was present at an adoption hearing, what other methods of verifying that an attorney attended satisfy the State?
Response:
Please see attachment CC.

Question 48:
Pursuant to sections 2.2.1C.1(n), what are ancillary hearings?  Are those hearings conducted in a court?
Response:
Generally, yes. 

Question 49:
Pursuant to sections 2.2.1C.1(n), if ancillary hearings can be billed, how should the contractor demonstrate that the attorney attended the ancillary hearing if no court order is generated?
Response:
Please see attachment CC.

Question 50:
Pursuant to section 2.2.1.D.1, when the State audits the provider, will the State allow for a “preferred location visit” in place of a visit to a child’s placement?
Response:
Every attempt should be made to visit the child’s placement as well as any ‘preferred location’.  The case file must document the efforts and reasons for not visiting the child at the child’s placement.

Question 51:
Pursuant to section 2.2.1.D.2, “Ensure that the Assigned Attorney makes an In-Person Contact, in the client’s placement, at least once every six (6) months”, does this language require a visit to the placement even where the client has a “preferred location” in section 2.2.1.D.1?
Response:
See response to Question 50.

Question 52:
Pursuant to section 2.3.5.A, if “subcontracting of the core services” is not permitted, under what circumstances will subcontracting be allowed?
Response:
Subcontracting is not permitted under this RFP. 

Question 53:
Pursuant to section 2.3.5.A, is the subcontracting different in the Functional Area II?  See reference to section 2.2.
Response:
Subcontracting is not permitted under this RFP.
Question 54:
Pursuant to section 5.3.2 D, are subsidiaries permitted to bid under this RFP?
Response:
An entity may only submit one Proposal in response to the RFP per Functional Area.  Please review Section 5.3.2 D.
Rufus Berry
Procurement Officer
November 30, 2020 
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